
1

Minutes
Town Council Finance Committee meeting

October 11, 2016
Town Hall Conference Room B

1. The meeting was called to order at 7:00 PM.
Present: Matthew O’Brien, Andy Brodersen, Julie Blanchard, Hannah Pietrantonio
Also present: John Elsesser, Town Manager; Beth Bauer, Finance Director

2. Acceptance of Minutes, September 12, 2016:
Hannah Pietrantonio moved to accept the minutes of the Finance Committee meeting 
on September 12, 2016. The motion was seconded by Andy Brodersen and carried on 
unanimous vote. Andy noted that it was a somewhat confusing meeting and that Laura 
Stone did an excellent job on the minutes. 

3. Reports:
A. Chairman – Matthew O’Brien: Matthew noted that at the last meeting, School 
Superintendent David Petrone said we could get signed copies of Board of Education 
transfer forms. He wants to follow up to make sure those are received.

B. Committee members: none.

C. Finance Director – Beth Bauer: 
Revenues continue at a pace ahead of last year. This is a good sign, except for 
COVRRA which is lagging. This is not unanticipated since COVRRA rates were 
adjusted after the budget was put together, so the anticipated number was a little 
higher. Matthew O’Brien asked if we have a new anticipated number. Beth replied she 
hasn’t calculated it. John Elsesser said it is $5 x 4600 approximate households, so it is 
in the neighborhood of $23,000. Beth noted whether that is the only reason for the lag is
another question.

The Board of Assessment Appeals only had 8 appellants and reduced 5 of the 8 for a 
total reduction in assessment of $16,710. This will not have much of an impact. 

Adjustments to special revenue fund: Beth pointed out that we adjusted expected 
revenues to anticipate the audit process we are currently engaged in. Any payment 
made via an encumbrance gets posted to the current fiscal year. In July and August we 
have to evaluate to see if they belong in the prior fiscal year. In the special revenue fund
we had to make adjustments. The COVRRA fund had about $93,000 in expenditures 
which got put into last year, so they have been reclassified as belonging in FY 15/16. 
Current year reports where we had recorded the $93,000 in FY 16/17 have been 
reduced and FY 15/16 have been increased. These numbers have not yet been audited
so they are not final numbers. We wanted to show the change in where expenditures 
are at present. John noted that some encumbrances have been liquidated. Beth said for
purposes of this we have been including them but the end number will not be the fund 
balance. Matthew said he will probably be contacting Beth for further discussion of this 
matter. John said there was an expense we processed in July that really belonged in 
the last fiscal year. Beth noted that some bills are usually a month behind, such as 
hauler fees. Most bills we receive in July are for things that happen in June. John noted 
that tonnage fees vary widely from month to month, i.e. if someone strips a roof, so they
are unpredictable. With more houses you pick up the expenditures but you also pick up 



2

the revenue. Beth said there was some thought that we should just be looking at 
expenditures in this special revenue fund. Julie Blanchard said she never thought an 
encumbrance was an assumption. Matthew noted they are trying to restrict the fund 
use. John said it is a benchmark. It is better than having nothing, but you need to go 
back and do cleanup. Unlike the general fund where you have to know where you are 
on June 30th, this keeps rolling. We just need to charge the right bills in the right place. 
We do clean up as part of the audit process every year. Andy asked if the auditors have
problem with this process. Beth replied the auditors require us to do this. It can be a 
little confusing because you have payments you made in July/August and suddenly they
are gone. Because everything is encumbered it makes reporting more of a challenge. 
Matthew said he is not clear if there are existing encumbrances that are not spent. Beth 
said we haven't gotten to that review yet. John said we were purposefully trying to 
reduce COVRRA fund balance. The actual cost of household tonnage and collection far 
exceeded what we billed.

4. Consideration of lease purchasing for CNG boiler project: 
John Elsesser said we are trying to put a framework together for boiler financing and 
then fill in the right numbers. We don’t have all of the information yet. We have 60 days 
from bid opening and hope we can wrap this up for Monday because otherwise it is a 
long time until the first Council meeting in November. The school bid will include 2 new 
sets of boilers at the high school and middle school, and conversion of the burners in 
the connecting wing. Conversion is not recommended for the police department boiler 
by the manufacturer, so we are recommending buying new for the police department. 
The fire department has had severe problems with their HVAC system. They couldn't 
get the heat to operate at all this year and they have been without hot water for a couple
weeks. The brought in a different service firm and were able to get the hot water heating
going but the pumps weren't working. It was $5,000 just to repair it. Matthew O’Brien 
asked if they have been maintaining it. John replied yes but the system has been a 
disaster. They are on their third system and still have problems. CT Mechanical is 
recommending variable speed pumps to gear up or down depending on demand. The 
boilers self-vent, so they don't need the power venting system so that whole system can
be eliminated. Andy asked if the fire department can get along if the work is not done 
until spring. John said they got it working as of Friday so the thought is yes. In a worst 
case scenario we could do a temporary propane conversion. Variable speed pumps 
could be put in now. We still need them. There are some steps we can do. For long 
term efficiency putting in an indirect hot water heater would be better.  Rebates are not 
guaranteed for the project. If we get the rebates the funds could go back into CNREF. 
There are a variety of financing options, but there is no need to appropriate money 
because we are spending money already approved through the budget process. 
Spending for lease purchase is not a referendum item. No town meeting is needed - just
Council action. Our position hasn't changed. Beth Bauer said we had asked the lease 
purchasing firms if the boilers could be lease purchased and answer was yes.  John 
said this is where the philosophy of the Council comes into effect - whether you want to 
do lease purchasing if you have cash. Matthew noted the future burden is less so that 
comes into play also. He likes the concept to pay for the hardware but would be 
interested to know about the other accounting mechanism. Andy Brodersen and 
Hannah Pietrantonio also agreed they have no problem with the initial concept. John 
said it does make sense to lease purchase because the cost could be offset by savings.
Matthew said it would be good to know what the rebates are. John will provide a couple 
scenarios for Council review between now and Monday’s meeting.



3

5. Establish dates for joint meetings with Board of Education Fiscal Committee:
Matthew O’Brien suggested that Council Finance/Board of Education Fiscal committees
might meet in December to pre-date the budget. He noticed that the Town of Tolland is 
having 3 joint meetings to talk about their budgets. Hannah said that would be good 
because there are a lot of things we don't understand. Tolland is getting an overview on 
their spending. Matthew said those meetings are public and everyone in town can 
attend. He is not saying we need that but a talk before budget season begins would be 
good. John noted the Board of Education is working on capital now at the department 
level. Budget guidelines are going out to staff now. He met with Superintendent Petrone 
last week and threw out a couple dates. Maybe Finance could go to the Board of 
Education’s December 12th Fiscal Committee meeting, or if not maybe the Board could 
come to the December 8th Finance Committee meeting. The audit meeting is January 
9th. They will come to Council for budget on March 13th. Maybe we could also meet on 
May 8th for an early look at year end. There will be expenses for the CHS walls project 
and we still need people for that building committee so the project can move forward.

6. Adjournment:
The meeting was adjourned at 7:54 PM on a motion by Andy Brodersen, seconded by 
Hannah Pietrantonio and unanimously approved.

Respectfully submitted,

Laura Stone
Town Council Clerk


